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  [2.30 pm] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, Ms Viskovic for the Council. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Thank you. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Carranceja for the Crown. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 10 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And Ms Mehlhopt for the Regional Council. 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And perhaps if I could just ask others to- - -  15 

 

MS MARKS:   Ms Marks for CDL Land New Zealand Limited and the 

Riccarton Racecourse Reserve Trustees. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, Ms Marks. 20 

 

MS WALSH:   Ms Walsh for Ngāi Tahu Property Limited, Progressive 

Enterprises Limited and Te Rūnanga O Ngāi Tahu. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And have you been briefed, Ms Walsh, on- - - 25 

 

MS WALSH:   Yes, I have, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Right, so we will have to cover that at some point.  Yes? 

 30 

MR ROGERS:   Sir, Rogers for Fulton Hogan Land Development Limited. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, Mr Rogers, yes. 

 

MS LIMMER:  Sir, Ms Limmer for Fulton Hogan Limited. 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  So Fulton Hogan Limited and Fulton Hogan 

Land Development, is that right? 

 

MS LIMMER:  Yes, sir. 40 

 

MS NICOL:   Ms Nicol for Lyttelton Port Company, Christchurch 

International Airport and Orion. 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you, Ms Nicol, and I see the note that 

Mr Williams put in earlier on covers the issues that you’ll be covering 

in terms of your evidence and matters – the memorandum. 

 

MS NICOL:   Yes. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  All right.  Other parties, please.  Counsel 

first, yes. 

 

MS ROBINSON:   Ms Robinson, a joint submission from Christ’s College and 10 

Graeme and Joy McVicar. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 

MR SCHEELE:   John Scheele representing Christchurch Polytechnic Institute 15 

of Technology and University of Canterbury. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  All right, now around the rest of the room?  

Yes? 

 20 

MR LA MARQUAND:   David La Marquand for the Oil Companies. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr La Marquand, Thank you. 

 

MR HODGSON:   Vance Hodgson for Horticulture New Zealand. 25 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Hodgson. 

 

MS ASTON:   Fiona Aston for Rock Hill Limited, Bassett and Talbot, Gill 

Burrell and Service. 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 

MR ROBERTSON:   Barry Robertson, just under my own, representing 

myself. 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, Mr Robertson. 

 

MR KRISTINSSON:   I am Hugo Kristinsson, I am representing South 

Brighton Residents’ Association and Empowered Christchurch. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Now, just hold on for a minute there, I’ll find that on our 

list.  What submission number is it? 

 

MR KRISTINSSON:   2498. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   2498, thank you.  Thank you, Mr Kristinsson. 

 

MR CAMBRIDGE:   Mr Cambridge for Andrew Thomas.  I filled out a 

submission form at the back. 

 5 

  [2.35 pm] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, so Andrew Thomas, now another one I just 

need to find – do you know the submission number? 

 10 

MR CAMBRIDGE:   2439. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. So it is – and your – sorry, counsel’s name – 

sorry, the representatives name again. 

 15 

MR………:   Ricky (INDISTINCT 0.30). 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Just a minute.  Thank you. 

 

MS McLEOD:   Sir, Ainsley McLeod for Transpower. 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, Ms McLeod. 

 

MR TAYLOR:   Graham Taylor, representing A Pam and S Sun Yu, RJ and 

CB Sissons, Bromac Lodge, Martin Harcourt and Mercantile Trust. 25 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, Mr Taylor. 

 

MR MORA:   Good afternoon, I’m Mike Mora, representing the 

Riccarton/Wigram Community Board. 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, Mr Mora. 

 

MR MORA:   Submission 2363. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  Right. 

 

MS VAN BEEK:   Judy van Beek, private submission, 2091. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. Are there any other submitters or 40 

representatives of submitters here who want to put in an appearance? 

 

MS McGUIGAN:   Pauline McGuigan, personal submitter, 2535. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay. So all of those who are submitting in a personal 45 

capacity will note the Friend of Submitter is sitting with a sign in front 



 Page 4 

  

PHC:  CH8 Subdivision, Development and Earthworks (Part) ex NNZ 06.08.15 

of him, you should introduce yourself to him he can assist you on 

procedural issues – all right. 

 

 So now in terms of the scope of this hearing, perhaps we could come 

back to the – we will go to the memorandum of the Council and Ms 5 

Viskovic, I’ll get you to speak to some issues here – the first issue in 

terms of scope relates to the New Neighbourhood zone matter in which 

a minute is issued and the Council opposed that those matters be carved 

out of this particular hearing in order to be addressed in the context of 

the New Neighbourhood provisions. 10 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, that is correct, sir. One thing I do note in the 

memorandum which we filed the definitions included in attachment B 

include definitions that include terms that are relevant to the New 

Neighbourhood zone provisions only. 15 

 

 I have a list of the ones that should be deleted but perhaps the easiest 

thing to do would be to file an updated version of attachment B rather 

than striking through the relevant definitions now. 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. Actually just on that particular matter and – it is 

obviously we are yet to hear matters, and perhaps just for the benefit of 

the various submitters in the room, what we are talking about here. So 

there is a set of provisions that were scheduled for hearing in this round 

related to what is called “New Neighbourhood Zone”.  25 

 

 A minute was issued about a fortnight or so ago, indicating some issues 

that surfaced in the stage 1 hearings in regard to those provisions and 

there is going to be a prehearing conference scheduled for – and it is on 

the website – in order to determine what appropriate procedure should 30 

be followed to deal with those provisions. 

 

 The Council suggestion now which seems to me to make compelling 

sense, is to cut out from this particular hearing that we are dealing with 

now, any matters concerning the New Neighbourhood provisions so 35 

that they are all wrapped up and dealt with together as a bunch – there 

is no point in dealing with them separately. 

 

 So if your submission relates to those New Neighbourhood zone 

provisions you may just need to note that and note that there is a 40 

prehearing conference scheduled for this. You can ask the Friend of 

Submitter about this and it is on the website and you are encouraged to 

attend that prehearing meeting. 
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 But subject to any issues anyone wants to raise about the suggestion 

from the Council, it seems to me that it is a sensible course to take them 

out of this hearing and deal with them, all right. 

 

  [2.40 pm] 5 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   I note that at paragraph 2.3 of the memorandum we have 

noted that there are a number of submissions that are considered to be 

out of scope.  We are in the process of going through those that have 

been coded as being out of scope and are just forming a view on those 10 

which are actually out of scope and which are not, so we can provide 

the Panel with a list of those once that exercise has been completed.  It 

particularly relates to where submissions have been made on provisions 

that were notified as part of stage 1 or provisions that have been 

notified as part of stage 3. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So that all parties are aware of what is proposed there and 

if necessary can raise issues, is that proposed to be done by way of a 

memorandum which would be filed and served on. 

 20 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, sir, it would be filed and served on all submitters to this 

hearing. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Thank you. So there are no directions made on that 

question of scope right now. We will wait for the Council’s 25 

memorandum to come in, have a look through that, if there are any 

issues concerning any particular submitter or whatever, then the 

process would be to communicate with the Panel at that point by way 

of a memorandum if you take issue with anything in that regard. 

 30 

 There have been some difficulties which we have unfortunately 

become aware of in terms of how the codings occurred on some 

submissions and the Council is working to resolve that as quickly as 

possible and we look forward to when that happens. 

 35 

 All right, just before we get onto other matters, Ms Viskovic, coming 

back to the New Neighbourhood zone matter.  It would be in order too, 

wouldn’t it, to produce an update red line version of the – do we have a 

red line version of provisions here? 

 40 

MS VISKOVIC:   No, sir.  To identify the provisions that are - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   That are taken out of this inquiry. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   - - - taken out, okay.   45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Just I think if we could find – could you test when that 

could be done so we can properly make a direction on timetable for 

that? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Certainly. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Obviously it should come in at the outset before the 

evidence exchange timetable. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, sir. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right.   

 

MS VISKOVIC:   The only other matter that I was going to raise was at 2.4 we 

note that informal mediation with submitters has been limited to date.  I 15 

just note that in relation to this hearing there are approximately 450 

individual submission points, about 100 of those are related to the New 

Neighbourhood zone, and of the remaining 350 points I just note that 

the Council’s initial look through the submissions indicates that 

approximately a third of those submission points are likely to be 20 

accepted in part or accepted in full, so just to provide the Panel with an 

initial view as to the Council’s work to date. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, so what you are signalling there is on residual 

matters we take out New Neighbourhood zones.  The Council’s 25 

position is expecting the matters in contention to narrow back quite 

significantly before the hearing. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, that is correct, sir. 

 30 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, and is that taken into account in the estimate of 

the hearing time at 6.1? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, that is correct. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, of four days.  Are there any other matters you 

wanted to speak to in regard to your memorandum and the associated 

statement of issues which I think you said you were going to update to 

redact out the New Neighbourhood zone provisions? 

 40 

MS VISKOVIC:   There was not anything else other than perhaps just talking 

about the proposed timetable which is set out at 4.1, whether that was 

acceptable to the Panel. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I will just have a look.  Well we will test the views with 45 

other parties I think before we finally determine the timetable but a 
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tentative view would be that the Council would provide a red line 

chapter at the same time as its evidence exchange and that date would 

be set at the 5 October, which is as per your suggestion. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:  Yes, I see that we have actually included the Council’s 5 

revised proposal being filed in advance of that on the 14 September. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Yes, well if the Council wishes to do that that is absolutely 

fine otherwise we could come in with the evidence if we can make a 

direction one way or the other depending on the preferences of other 10 

parties. 

  [2.45 pm] 

 

 Yes.  Ms Viskovic, just to clarify one other matter, in regard to the 

New Neighbourhood zone provisions, which will be the subject of the 15 

pre-hearing meeting coming up, I notice this memorandum has been 

co-signed by Mr Lang. (ph 0.14)  Are you in a position to know 

whether Mr Lang would be counsel in that particular matter. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   In relation to the New Neighbourhood zone? 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   I will have to confirm that.  This has been co-signed by 

Mr Lang as he will be leading this particular hearing but I can confirm 25 

whether he will be leading the New Neighbourhood zone or whether 

that is Mr Winchester. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, okay.  Well it would be good to know.  Obviously 

the two have a relationship. 30 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   In the fact that both are dealing with subdivision in 

particular. 35 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   A common representation would makes sense, Ms Viskovic. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  We are aware of Mr Lang’s experience in those 

matters too. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, sir. 

 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:  Okay so other aspects of the timetable, so submitter 

evidence, a tentative suggestion was for, or thinking on that would be 

that submitter evidence would come in second at the 14 October, 

rebuttal evidence at the 21 October, which I think is as per your 

suggestions as well. 5 

 

 I think what we should do though, is as those are only tentative and 

subject to what other people might wish to say and perhaps if there is 

anything further you wanted to add you could do that now, but 

otherwise we might just go round and see if anyone has any issues with 10 

your issue statement or anything else that they wish to raise, and also to 

give us an indication of their evidence proposed to be called. 

 

 So that is probably the final question I have got for you before I ask 

Mr Carranceja to address first on that. 15 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   In terms of the evidence that the Council is likely to call we 

have set that out at paragraph 3.1 of our memorandum.  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Yes, thank you.  All right.  And it is good to see 20 

Mr Andrew Long’s name there in terms of continuity. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right.  So Mr Carranceja, perhaps you could take up 25 

the reins next and indicate any issues you have or otherwise indicate 

the evidence to be called. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Certainly, sir, I will do all that for you, sir.  First of all I 

just want to say the Crown is supportive of having this hearing exclude 30 

the NNC provisions. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   New Neighbourhood. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   And that would reduce our witness list by one, sir for 35 

this hearing.  I would like to address you first of all, sir, on a number, 

just a few discreet issues in this proposal that we think would be 

sensibly heard with other stage 2 proposals and then I will address the 

memorandum that was filed jointly by Ngai Tahu and the Crown that 

has wider ramifications. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   So the first thing, sir, is that rule 8.3.1.1, table 4.  That 

provides minimum allotment sizes for this specific purpose Hospital 45 

zones, sir.  Now that is a provision that the Crown has lodged a further 
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submission on in support of the Canterbury District Health Board. 

Essentially the relief there is that there should be no minimum 

allotment size for healthcare activities within the specific purpose 

Hospital zone, sir.   

 5 

 Now the intention or what we would like to achieve, sir, is that the 

Hospital zone would be addressed as part of the Special Purpose 

Hospital proposal and this is a very discreet minimum allotment size 

issue, sir.  The reason I am seeking deferral is because the intention is 

that the Ministry of Health would call two witnesses but they would be 10 

the same, they could be covering the matter under specialist specific 

purposes.  So in terms of efficiency we are suggesting that this discreet 

issue be deferred to the Specific Purpose zone hearing, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And you are satisfied that there are, bearing in mind you 15 

were here this morning when we were discussing other suggestions put 

forward of matters and some of the difficulties with that, depending on 

how wide ranging they are including the interests of other parties and 

so forth and what might prejudice them. So what is the position in 

regard to this when you say it is discreet?  Are you saying that the 20 

Crown and the Hospital Board are the only relevant parties apart from 

the Council? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   What I can undertake, sir, is that we, unfortunately due 

to the time that we have had to do this extension of the (INDISTINCT 25 

4.25) we can undertake that and provide a memorandum, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right so we will not make directions on it now .  We 

will wait for your memorandum. 

 30 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, but that is an indication now, sir, that we would 

like to have this matter deferred.  It would reduce our witness list by 

two for that issue. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I see, all right.  Does the Council have a view on this, 35 

Ms Viskovic? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   I understand that this may be raised in relation to a number 

of zones.  Ms Walsh has indicated that perhaps the (INDISTINCT 

4.50) and minimum allotment sizes also be deferred to be heard as part 40 

of that hearing.  The Council’s position is that it would make more 

sense for the subdivision provisions to be heard as an integrated 

package, so that is the - - - 



 Page 10 

  

PHC:  CH8 Subdivision, Development and Earthworks (Part) ex NNZ 06.08.15 

  [2.50 pm] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  I have to say, worry about the continuity issues as 

you raised this morning, particularly if the Council has got a concern 

about it as well. 5 

 

 And we have had also – I mean in the balance of considerations, 

Mr Carranceja, you would have to say the fact that witnesses have to 

turn up twice probably sits right down the bottom - - - 

 10 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   - - - compared to all the other issues of public interest and 

continuity in making sure that what we do we do probably holistically, 

robustly, looking at all the issues and there is a danger, if I hear 15 

Ms Viskovic correctly, that this is just one of various things that people 

are suggesting go to a later basket. 

 

MRCARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Which is becoming rather overfull. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.  Well, no, this is referring to a hearing as part 

of stage 2 rather than a kick for touch at stage 2, sir. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, but nevertheless in terms of principle it is not ideal to 

have bits and pieces of the subdivision concept moved to another 

hearing. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Even if it is the case, that this is so discrete as no one else 

is really impacted by it, we have still got to think about how it sits with 

our decision making on subdivision, bearing in mind we are already 

taking up – far from ideal, but we’re already taking out the New 35 

Neighbourhood Zone regime to a separate inquiry. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.  Sir, essentially the motivation the Crown are 

raising this, sir, is it’s conscious about two main elements, the first is 

integrated decision making, it is a specific purpose zone issue.  And the 40 

second aspect, sir, is really just in terms of efficiency, wanting to 

minimise having to have multiple witnesses called at multiple times. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right. 

 45 

MR CARRANCEJA:   So that’s the motivation, sir.  
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Just file your memorandum seeking it.  We will allow the 

Council and other parties to respond to it and we will just have to make 

our determination at that time. 

 5 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, we will proceed with that. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   At this stage we just need to timetable on the conservative 

assumption that we would proceed as we are now.  

 10 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.  I will run through the witnesses at the end of 

this discussion, sir, in terms of scope. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right.  

 15 

MR CARRANCEJA:   The next issue is, again it’s similar to what I have just 

raised before, it is in rule 8.3.1.1 again, but this time it is table one.  

The Council on table one has inserted multiple new provisions relating 

to “minimum allotment site is for character areas”. 

 20 

 Now character areas is going to be a subject matter that will be 

discussed as part of the residential hearing, sir, and there will be 

witnesses that the Crown will intend to call dealing with character 

areas, the appropriateness of it. 

 25 

 Again, I hear what Ms Viskovic is saying, that minimum allotment is 

part and parcel of that, whether it is heard as part of the residential or 

part of the subdivision.  But certainly the Crown’s preference is to have 

it as part of the character area discussion in the residential hearing. 

 30 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well I think the position is the same, the answer is 

probably the same as the previous one. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir, I’ll address that - - - 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   We would have to deal with it on a proper formal 

application response basis and make a determination in light of that.  

Hearing what the Panel is telling you though, that we are concerned 

that we don’t start to disintegrate on some of these things, you are 

going to have make your case for that. 40 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Absolutely, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And you are going to have to cover off the issues of any 

procedural prejudice and so forth, to make sure we don’t have any 45 



 Page 12 

  

PHC:  CH8 Subdivision, Development and Earthworks (Part) ex NNZ 06.08.15 

issues there.  Other parties will respond, look at your application when 

it comes in. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir.  

 5 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   That’s the second indication.  The third indication, sir. 

This is rather discrete, this is again to do with a very specific matter, its 

8.5.5.  This is an assessment matter, sir.  It’s a strange one.  It is an 10 

assessment matter relating to – I will just bring it up on my screen, sir 

Takamatua and Robinsons Bay. 

 

 The reason I say it is an odd assessment matter is because even though 

this is a subdivision proposal, it is an assessment matter seeking to 15 

consider roof pitch, roof cladding, roof colour, wall claddings, wall and 

joinery, that sort of thing. 

 

 Sir, the Crown’s view is that because it deals with building form lines 

and that sort of thing, it is better to be heard as part of the residential 20 

proposal rather than a subdivision matter. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   It’s not as though it can’t be a subdivision matter though, 

it can be the subject of a condition that can be supported by a consent 

notice. 25 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   I suppose.  It just seems rather odd. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Is it in the Subdivision Chapter? 

 30 

MR CARRANCEJA:   It’s in the Subdivision Chapter, sir.  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well I think that’s probably why it has been heard in - - - 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   We just thought it was odd, it was something we would 35 

address in residential rather than subdivision, but if it is to be heard in 

subdivision so be it, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, there is not a black and white line between 

subdivision and land use Mr Carranceja.  40 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   No. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Particularly on the matter of land use control and the 

capacity to use consent notices. 45 
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MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   It depends on the nature of the control.  Again, if it is 

something the Crown really wants to push for and ask for then put it in 

your application.  5 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, certainly, sir.  Just to add, wall and joinery 

colours, exterior lighting, sir.   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Same sort of thing, isn’t it? 10 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   The same sort of thing. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I have to say, when it comes to those sorts of things 

slightly unusual, but I have seen it before - - - 15 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   - - - in the context of dealing with subdivision controls.  

 20 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, we will address that by memorandum. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right. 

 

  [2.55 pm] 25 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   And the last discrete issue, sir, relates to again these 

minimum allotment sizes for the rural zone.  We have two submissions 

that seek clarity regarding how those minimum allotment sizes work in 

the rural zone, and also an exemption for emergency service facilities. 30 

 

 Whether that is set as part of the rural or part of this one, sir, again I 

will address that as part of the memorandum.  But I am just conscious 

about the interrelationship between allotment sizes and I guess rural 

character amenities, sir, hence we have raised it. 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay.  All right. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Okay, so that is in terms of the discrete issues. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   If I can now turn to the memorandum that was jointly 

filed by the Crown and Ngāi Tahu.  I think I can signal - - - 

 45 

SJH:   Well who has filed this, because nobody’s name is on it, Mr Carranceja? 
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MR CARRANCEJA:   I appreciate that, and I apologise for that. 

 

SJH:   Never seen – so many times documents just filed on blank pieces of 

paper, who is filing it? 5 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, you are absolutely right. 

 

SJH:   Is it your firm or is it Ms Walsh’s firm? 

 10 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, it was prepared by a barrister engaged by a Te 

Rūnanga o Ngāi Tahu, I - - - 

 

SJH:   It’s not answering my question, who is filing it, your firm or Ms Walsh’s 

firm or jointly?  A barrister should know better. 15 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir, well look I will take responsibility, sir, for this.  

In future I will - - - 

 

SJH:   Well you just write yourself in future, whoever is responsible. 20 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Absolutely, sir, I apologise and I will ensure that 

Buddle Findlay is noted on - - - 

 

SJH:   And at this stage, can you explain why it is filed so late and it is so 25 

lacking in information that is necessary? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, the discussions between Ngāi Tahu and the Crown 

only really occurred on Monday, sir, it was a quick job to try to figure 

out which provisions are natural - - - 30 

 

SJH:   It certainly looks like it is a quick job. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Unfortunately, sir, we thought it was best to give notice 

to the parties to at least know that we were seeking this, and I accept, 35 

sir, that we need to discuss with the Council.  I had talked to 

Mr Winchester earlier in the week that we were wanting to do this.  

The details were not provided to Mr Winchester until yesterday 

because we were still trying to arrange details.  There was a lot of 

proposals we had to go through to figure out what relates to natural or 40 

cultural or heritage. 

 

 Again, the motivation, sir, from the Crown and I suspect this is shared 

by Ngāi Tahu, is that we would need multiple witnesses, as many as 

five from the Crown’s perspective, called at multiple hearings to deal 45 
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with ecological matters, natural heritage matters, cultural heritage 

matters. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   But can’t that be dealt with on the basis that we indicated 

this morning where evidence is briefed and prepared once, for one 5 

hearing - - - 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   - - - and then in later hearings.  Significant use is made of 10 

cross-referencing to that evidence, even in legal submissions.  If the 

theory of the evidence is exactly the same from hearing one to hearing 

two then wouldn’t the proposition be that the Crown would rely on the 

earlier evidence to make its latest submissions? 

 15 

MR CARRANCEJA:   That might potentially address the first issue, sir, but 

the second issue, and this is what we addressed in the memorandum 

that was filed jointly by the Crown, Council and Ngāi Tahu in the stage 

one subdivision, is that we are concerned about integration. 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Because there is a very strong interrelationship with 

that which is yet to come in the natural and cultural heritage proposal in 

stage three.  The difficulty we are dealing with, sir, is that ideally the 25 

natural and cultural heritage proposal was not left so late in the piece, 

because it is one of those - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   It is a constraints issue and ideally it should be dealt with 

before neighbourhood. 30 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   So we are almost working backwards.  Ideally the 

natural and cultural heritage would be looked at first.  It has got that 

strategic element as though it was a strategic direction chapter, because 

it has ramifications for multiple proposals throughout the Replacement 35 

Plan. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   We are where we are though, we have got it in the 

schedule on the basis that we have to deal with things on a proposal by 

proposal basis. 40 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And on the question of integration, there is nothing in that 

memorandum that gives me any comfort that we can safely say that the 45 

existing plan in its objectives, policies and rules will safely look after 
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all of these matters on the assumption that if we do not hear these 

matters now, and leave them till later, we will be making a decision on 

part of a proposal - - - 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   - - - and having part of that proposal operative because 

that’s the effect of order in Council. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.   10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   That will become an operative replacement plan and set of 

provisions without these provisions in the mix, and there is nothing in 

the memorandum to give the Panel comfort that this is safe in so far as 

the requirements of part two are concerned. 15 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Because the Panel has to sign off on part two. 

 20 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, that is accepted.  If I could just refer back to the 

process that occurred in the stage one subdivision hearing.  In that case 

it wasn’t Ngāi Tahu and the Crown that lodged a joint memorandum in 

the first instance, it was the Council and the Crown, and what happened 

there, and the same issues were raised by the Panel. 25 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, I guess they were raised and I think the answers 

given were that it was going to be fine. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Correct, sir. 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   But there is no answers given on that, in this 

memorandum. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Correct, sir, so what happened in that circumstance, 35 

Ngāi Tahu got involved in that second memorandum addressing the 

additional questions that the Panel raised 

 

  [3.00 pm] 

 40 

 What I am suggesting is a way forward here, sir, is that I think it is 

appropriate for Mr Winchester to seek instructions from his client 

because no doubt the Council will have its views regarding deferral as 

well.  I am conscious that we only provided our provisions to him 

yesterday, sir.  And my suggestion is we take on board the concerns 45 
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you have identified as well as the Chair and we will address that as a 

joint memorandum between Council, Ngāi Tahu and the Crown. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And I would suggest - - - 

 5 

SJH:   Well, not until someone answers as why a decided matter is included in 

here. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   I can explain that but perhaps my colleague will, I have 

looked - - - 10 

 

SJH:   You might explain why you never approached the Council earlier as 

well. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Yes, Ms Walsh, we might get you to cover all of your 15 

issues in one hit so starting with this one. 

 

MS WALSH:   Yes, sir, on the strategic directions matters you might recall that 

the strategic directions decision included a number of placeholders for 

stage 2 objectives relating to, for example, the rural environment and 20 

water quality.  The submission by TRONT is not in any way relating to 

what has been decided, it is to add a couple of objectives. 

 

SJH:   Well, doesn’t that have - - - 

 25 

MS WALSH:   Those placeholders were - - - 

 

SJH:   - - - to take part in the wash-up though not as part of stage 3? 

 

MS WALSH:   Sorry, sir? 30 

 

SJH:   It takes part in the wash-up at the end of this process, doesn’t it? 

 

MS WALSH:   That is fine, sir. 

 35 

SJH:   That is what those placeholders are for. 

 

MS WALSH:   Stage 3 hadn’t been notified when stage 2 had been - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, it has now been notified, hasn’t it? 40 

 

MS WALSH:   Happy for that to be deferred, sir. 

 

SJH:   And this is not included. 

 45 

MS WALSH:   Happy for that to be deferred, sir. 
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SJH:   Until when? 

 

MS WALSH:   Until stage 3 when there is going to be a hearing on strategic 

objectives. 5 

 

SJH:   Stage 3 is already notified. 

 

MS WALSH:   Sir, the stage 3 has notified I understand an objective to include 

in the strategic directions chapter which relates to the Central City.  It 10 

would make sense for any submitters who are seeking other objectives 

to be included to be heard when that is heard. 

 

SJH:   That is the Central City, what about the rest of the city, how do people 

find out about this? 15 

 

MS WALSH:  Sir, when would the Panel like to hear those objectives, TRONT 

is flexible and would work in with when - - - 

 

SJH:   Well, we are going to have to have a wash-up period and there will 20 

probably be in a number of things that are going to have to be notified 

and go through that process but rather than do it in dribs and drabs 

aren’t we better to do it at one after we have held all the hearings and 

we have an operative plan? 

 25 

MS WALSH:   Yes, sir, I completely agree, I am happy for that to happen. 

 

SJH:   All right. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Okay. Ms Walsh, just before you go further, is there 30 

anything you wanted to cover off, Mr Carranceja, in addition to what 

you have covered, have you covered your basis on that? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, and maybe if I can address the Chair’s query of my 

learned friend. As I mentioned before, sir, we did approach the Council 35 

last week, I had an indication it was only a high level discussion that 

we saw and there was quite a number of natural character provisions 

but - - - 

 

SJH:   How long has this been around for, when was it notified?  When was 40 

stage 2 notified? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, I can’t tell you the exact date. 

 

SJH:   A long time ago. 45 
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MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   And you started doing something about it last week.   Do you see why I 

am unhappy about that? 

 5 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir, accepted. 

 

SJH:   So don’t try to justify it, it was left too late and it should have involved 

the Council from an early stage. 

 10 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   So let’s move on. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So you covered all the other issues in the memorandum 15 

from the Council issues, just in case you have missed any there, that is 

fine otherwise and we can go to the next person. You are satisfied with 

the estimate of hearing time? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes.  Now, I just need to give you our list of witnesses, 20 

sir.  Sir, on the basis that the New Neighbourhood zone will not be 

included in this we will be looking to have 10 witnesses, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you. 

 25 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Actually perhaps I will give you the worst case scenario 

in case the memorandum that we filed dealing with those discrete 

matters do not result in deferral of those discrete issues so I will have to 

make it 11 witnesses, sir. 

 30 

JUDGE HASSAN:   11 witnesses if, thank you.   

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, in terms of the general issues raised by this 

proposal, we would be looking at a CERA operational witness, that is 

to deal with the relationship between hazard mitigation, the works 35 

undertaken by CERA and the earthworks restrictions.   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  We will have a planner for the New Zealand Fire 40 

Service. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   A planner concentrating on earthworks issues raised by 45 

the proposal and a planner dealing with I will just call it the 
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miscellaneous subdivision issues which we are hoping to defer to those 

other proposals I mentioned, sir. 

 

  [3.05 pm] 

 5 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So that is the 11? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, it is. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right. 10 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:  Now in terms of dealing with the natural and cultural 

values issues raised by this proposal, we would be looking to have five 

witnesses. We would have a terrestrial ecologist, a freshwater ecologist, 

a rural character and amenity expert, a landscape architect and a 15 

planner from the Department of Conservation. 

 

 Sir, for that last discreet issue regarding the specific purpose hospital 

zone that’s a minimum (INDISTINCT 0.51), if that is not to be 

preferred it will be a Ministry of Health operational witness and a 20 

Ministry of Health planner, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, so if an application is to be made and given we 

have covered those topics you have raised this morning and the one this 

morning in regard to Ngāi Tahu’s interests as well and your mention of 25 

a joint memorandum, it obviously desirable that you can try to cover 

everything in one document if not two. I will hear from Ms Walsh 

shortly, but the other thing I would say around the natural heritage 

matters and national cultural heritage matters is that it would seem to 

me that a joint application may not be sufficient for section 32 purposes 30 

that you probably need to give some thought to a supporting statement 

of evidence which gives the Panel assurance that if one was to look at 

the administration of these issues with the existing plans in place, that 

the section 6 and 7 matters that these relate to will not be compromised 

by the approach being suggested ending any hearing that is deferred if 35 

that’s the decision the Panel makes. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And the other issue of course to bear carefully in mind the 40 

interest of other parties who have made submissions who could be 

prejudiced by this matter procedurally and that is a matter you will just 

need to reflect on and decide how best to approach and tell us how you 

have done it so we can be satisfied those other parties will not be 

prejudiced and they won’t be raising objection that hasn’t already been 45 

through about by the parties putting the idea first. 
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MR CARRANCEJA:  Certainly, sir. Just to give you an indication, in the event 

that through the joint memorandum filed that the matters we are 

seeking to have deferred are deferred we would be reducing our 

witness as the threat. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, so it obviously makes a substantive difference to the 

number of witnesses you are calling at this point. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir.  Thank you, sir. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Now I think probably I should hear from Ms Walsh before 

going to others given that this issue is alive.  Now, Ms Walsh, do you 

have anything further to say on those matters in regard to the 

application? 15 

 

MS WALSH:   No, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So you would see no issue in principle if an application is 

to be made, it’s to be made jointly and it is to be supported by relevant 20 

planning evidence? 

 

MS WALSH:   Yes, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Thank you. Now, that planning evidence should be 25 

properly informed of the issues you have raised as well, Mr Carranceja. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   You have mentioned various issues, for instance terrestrial 30 

ecology, freshwater ecology, rural character and landscape and it would 

be wise for the planner to be well briefed on those matters by relevant 

experts before they give their evidence so we know that those issues 

have been covered off well.   

 35 

 In terms of timetable, what is the proposal on that for lodging these? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Well I think, sir, we need to hear from other parties if 

we are dealing with natural cultural heritage - - - 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   No, we would need a timetable which would start with the 

lodgement of the joint application and then we will timetable by 

direction to parties as an opportunity to respond.   

 

SJH:   I mean what we are seeking is what should have been in this document. 45 
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MR CARRANCEJA:   Correct, sir.  Well perhaps if I could ask Ms Viskovic, 

and I am not sure if she has spoken to - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   We want to come back to this later once we have some 

other parties, I think. 5 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  We’ll move along, you can have a bit of a discussion if 

you like while it’s going on.  Ms Walsh? 10 

 

MS WALSH:  Witnesses, sir, for Ngāi Tahu Property Limited will be a planner 

and an engineer.  Witnesses for Progressive Enterprises Limited will be 

the same – a planner and an engineer. The only issue in the subdivision 

chapter is the minimum allotment size for the Papakāinga zone and we 15 

may seek a deferral of that issue to be heard with the Papakāinga zone 

but I will address that in the memorandum.  Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, now starting from this end of the table –Regional 

Council, Ms Mehlhopt. 20 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Sir, no issues with the memorandum that has been filed by 

the city, and in terms of evidence at this stage the Regional Council 

does not propose to lodge evidence on this. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  Ms Marks? 

 

  [3.10 pm] 

 

MS MARKS:  Sir, given the confirmation that the new neighbourhood zone 30 

provisions will be deferred to that hearing. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you Ms Marks. It is something clearly that the 

panel will have to issue some communication to the parties on pretty 

soon, but having heard the Council’s request for that this morning I 35 

think it is the right approach that will follow, but you can make that 

assumption. 

 

MS MARKS:   Thank you, sir. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, all right. Yes, thank you. 

 

MR ROGERS:  Yes, sir, in terms of Fulton Hogan Land Development Limited, 

submission 2097, there is three points made, or three separate 

submissions. They relate to ODPs and planning maps, and 45 

consequently there’s a degree of straddling various chapters. We find 
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that we’re in subdivision and also residential. Now, the submissions 

relate to planning maps 44 and 49, and the relevant ODPs. There are no 

issues that appear to arise in terms of the memorandum that’s been filed 

in respect of those points, and in terms of how the panel decide to deal 

with another submission which is related, and that is the submission 5 

made by Mr Harcourt and others, that is submission number 2477, the 

evidence proposed would be from a planner, probable a infrastructural 

engineer, and possibly a character and amenity expert. 

 

 The evidence would cover all three submissions dealing with 10 

subdivision issues and residential issues. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Okay, now in terms of the outline development plan, Mr 

Roger, is that a new neighbourhood zone? 

 15 

MR ROGERS:  No, this development relates to all the, the site at issue is a 

single site. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 20 

MR ROGERS:  It is already substantially developed, so new neighbourhood 

does not arise. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   That is okay. 

 25 

MR ROGERS:  So it is kind of a bit of a catch-up type scenario. The ODP 

issues that have arisen are really in the form of corrections, so there is a 

commonality between the city and the submitter on the ODP issues. 

There is a submission lodged by the city in support of the corrections to 

the ODP. That is submission number 2123 by the city. The other 30 

related ODP issue is a correction in terms of the notation of Night 

Stream. And the plan matter in relation to the planning map issue is 

Fulton Hogan have lodged a submission in support of the proposed 

plan as notified as it relates to extending zoning. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, all right, now Ms Viskovic just because we’re 

working our way around, I’d like you to reflect on the estimate on 

hearing time. Do not address on it now, but we do need to make sure 

that is realistic. Ms Limmer? 

 40 

MS LIMMER:  Thank you, sir. Fulton and Hogan does not at this stage 

anticipate calling any evidence in stage 2. It notes issue 20 in the 

Council’s memorandum relates directly to quarrying and earthworks, 

so it requests leave to produce rebuttal evidence if something comes 

through in the evidence on that. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:  Okay, yes, thank you Ms Limmer. Yes. 

 

MS NICOL:   Lyttelton Port Company will call planning evidence, the airport 

will call both planning and company evidence, and Orion will also call 

planning and company evidence. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, thank you. Now, Ms Robinson, yes, I think you 

might be next. 

 

MS ROBINSON:  Christ College and McVicar, the issue is quite narrow. They 10 

will be calling planning evidence and traffic evidence. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, thank you, and you are comfortable with 

everything else in the Council’s issues statement? 

 15 

MS ROBINSON:   Yes, comfortable with that, thank you, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, yes, you are next. 

 

MR SCHEELE:  In terms of the Christchurch Polytechnic Institute of 20 

Technology, we were calling planning evidence only, and in terms of 

the University of Canterbury, will be calling legal and planning only. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Thank you, all right, I will just work across the room I 

think. 25 

 

MR ROBERTSON:   Yes, I will be just delivering support documents, and 

maybe a budget. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And maybe a- - -  30 

 

  [3.15 pm] 

 

MR ROBERTSON:   A budget, a budget. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   A budget for what - - -  

 

MR ROBERTSON:   A budget for the - - -  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   - - - what sort of budget? 40 

 

MR ROBERTSON:   - - - proposed earthworks. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, why would a budget be relevant to us? 

 45 
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MR ROBERTSON:   Well, to make sure you can see it is financial viable, that 

it would actually work. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I see, yes, now I understand. 

 5 

MR ROBERTSON:   So the – yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you. 

 

 Yes, if he – if parties could – I apologise for this, it is quite a challenge 10 

sometimes remembering people’s names and parties as they go but if 

you just state for the record each time you stand up thank you. 

 

MS……….:   Yes. 

 15 

MR………:   Sir, I would like to provide evidence that over – between 2,000 

and 3,500 properties in the coastal areas do not have any land 

remediation and therefore should not be built on, and I would like that 

to be considered as that land is new subdivisions and mitigated as new 

subdivisions, Judge, thank you. 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Yes, and you can communicate with the Friend of 

Submitter about those matters, how it works procedurally so that you 

are comfortable with all of that, as to how it all works in process terms 

for you, all right, thank you. 25 

 

 Perhaps, Ms Aston, I probably should get planning experts to address. 

 

MS ASTON:   First of all Rock Hill and Basset and Talbot, that relates to issue 

10 which is the proposed residential mixed density zone, and so the 30 

substantive evidence will be part of the residential chapter and the 

subdivision standards flow on from that, so it may well be that we don’t 

actually need to present evidence. But in the event that we do, because 

it will have been already been dealt with in residential and the kind of 

the concept, but if we do, it will be planning and possibly 35 

surveying/urban design. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 

 

MS ASTON:   And then, sorry, the other two submitters were Borrel and 40 

Service, and Borrel is similar, it relates to residential character areas 

which will be primarily dealt with – it is under issue 9 – but if evidence 

is required it will be planning and possibly lay evidence from the 

property owner and Service will be planning. 

 45 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 
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MR HODGSON:   Vance Hodgson, Horticulture New Zealand. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 5 

MR HODGSON:   No issue with the Council’s memorandum, sir, and both in 

terms of the issues identified and the timetable, it is fine by us. 

 

 Hort NZ would be calling witnesses in planning and engineering 

evidence in relation to earthworks and erosion and sediment controls. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you, Mr Hodgson, now Mr la Marquand. 

 

MR LA MARQUAND:   Thank you, sir. Yes, the oil companies will be calling 

planning evidence, and in terms of the issue statement, there is a couple 15 

of matters there I would just like to raise. Optimistically it is because 

the Council has probably already agreed, from what they were saying 

before in terms of third of the matters that they have looked at. 

 

 So in terms of issue 19, which relates to an exemption, the oil 20 

companies were seeking in 21.85.67 an exemption in terms of the NES. 

And there was also a matter in relation to provision 8.8.13 relating to 

notification in relation to submission 2185.66. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So you’re saying that issue is additional, is that - - -  25 

 

MR LA MARQUAND:   Yes, they’re not included in the issue statement, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right. Thank you, if you could take - - -  

 30 

MR LA MARQUAND:   And the timetable is acceptable, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  Is there any difficulty that Ms Viskovic, and when 

you come to submit the updated version you just update on some of 

these issues that have been identified and not in - - -  35 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Certainly we can do that, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. All right, now I think probably, Mr Taylor 

might, we should probably hear from Mr Taylor, is a representative of 40 

parties. 

 

MS TAYLOR:   Yes, I represent five parties who - - -  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you. 45 
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MS TAYLOR:  - - - are concerned with the same issues that Mr Rogers has just 

mentioned, relating to the Fulton Hogan land. We have a bit of a 

“chicken and egg” situation because the submission relief which is 

sought in relation to the Outline Development Plan contained in the 

subdivision chapter, it relates to an alternative relief relating to other 5 

subdivision, other submissions that seek the New Neighbourhood 

zoning of adjacent land. 

 

  [3.20 pm] 

 10 

 We have a situation where adjoining land is sought to be rezoned, 

which we understand will be heard as part of the New Neighbourhood 

Zone hearings. If that land is rezoned, our opposition to the Outline 

Development Plan changes and the zone changes on the Fulton Hogan 

land would disappear. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, I see. 

 

MR TAYLOR:  However in the present situation is that if that rezoning did not 

occur on the client’s land the opposition would remain to that. 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR TAYLOR:  The question is whether or not the changes to the Outline 

Development Plan and the Subdivision chapter be heard with the 25 

Residential rules or whether it would come after the consideration of 

the rezoning of the land adjacent. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Obviously the New Neighbourhood zone issue creates a 

little bit of a complexity. From the Panel’s point of view, the Panel will 30 

need to assess when it should deliberate and determine matters bearing 

in mind it can consider evidence from related hearings in order to reach 

its final view. 

 

MR TAYLOR:   Yes. 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And it seems from where I sit here that you may be at this 

stage prudent in assuming that you should attend both. 

 

MR TAYLOR:   I think that is probably what we would need to do. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Yes, and so attend the pre-hearing meeting for the New 

Neighbourhood zone it seems you may need to do that as well in order 

to look after your interests. 

 45 

MR TAYLOR:   Yes. 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   And in due course, once we have figured out what should 

be happening procedurally and make the directions and then move from 

there, it may become a bit clearer.  Obviously if the issues are resolved 

between your respective clients, which has not happened to date, that 5 

might help but it is a matter for you.  Thank you. 

 

MR TAYLOR:   On the basis that we are we would be legally represented and 

we would be having a planner at the construction. (INDISTINCT 2.06) 

 10 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right.  Thanks very much, Mr Taylor.  Now if we could 

whip around the rest of the room with people who have not got 

representatives here.  Mr Mora at the back, put your hand up. 

 

MR MORA:  Thank you, sir.  With relation to subdivision development and 15 

earthworks, we are asking in relation to appendix 8.6.5, pages 90 and 

91, the Buchanans Road outline development plan, the Board wants to 

support that plan as notified because we are aware - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  You do not have to cover the merits of what you are 20 

wanting to ask, that will be for later, Mr Mora. 

 

MR MORA:   Sorry? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  You don’t need to cover the substance, what you are going 25 

to be arguing later now but in terms of the issues that have been raised 

by the Council they are comprehensive enough to cover your client’s 

issues? 

 

MR MORA:   The stuff that has been raised here today so far? 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR MORA:   Yes. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right. 

 

MR MORA:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And what witnesses are you proposing to call, if any? 40 

 

MR MORA:   Just myself, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right.  Thanks, Mr Mora. 

 45 

MR MORA:   Thank you. 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  All right, if you could work around the room, 

perhaps work from the back is fine, work back to the front. 

 

MS VAN BEEK:   Yes, it was Judy van Beek, submission 2099. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MS VAN BEEK:   It would just be lay witnesses, just ourselves to be called 

but I guess I have got one issue we are raising at under provision 10 

8.3.11, table 6A, just to do with the allotment sizes but the property - - - 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Sorry, could you speak up just a little bit. 

 

MS VAN BEEK: - - - in question is dissected into the Rural New 15 

Neighbourhood as well so it is just really getting clarification on where 

best to raise the issues, at which hearing, because we are part of the 

Subdivision, part of the Residential, part of the Rural and part of the 

New Neighbourhood all at the same time. 

 20 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well at this stage if you have made submissions on all of 

those topics you should engage in all of those hearings. 

 

MS VAN BEEK:   Okay, yes. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Not make the assumption that you do not engage in them.  

But bearing in mind the point I made before I want to reiterate, that the 

evidence that is before the Panel, maybe not so much for you, but for 

other parties, when those parties are coming to another hearing they do 

not need to repeat evidence they have already lead.  They can simply 30 

refer to it, even referring to it in legal submissions, because it is before 

us already. 

 

MS VAN BEEK:   Thank you. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, thank you.   

 

MR CAMBRIDGE: So for Andrew Thomas, there are no issues with the 

matters raised and we will be submitting witnesses in engineering and 

planning. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you.  Ms McLeod. 

 

MS MCLEOD:   Thanks.  Sir, Transpower has no issues with the timeframes or 

the issue statement and will be calling two witnesses: a company 45 

witness and a planner. 
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  [3.25 pm] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thanks, Ms McLeod.  Just that last point that I made 

obviously it may be something that Transpower can reflect on in regard 5 

to the evidence that it has called and so forth today, thank you.   

 

MS McGUIGAN: Pauline McGuigan, submitter No 2535, I will be 

representing myself, there will be no witnesses. 

 10 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Yes, thanks, Ms McGuigan. 

 

MS SMITH:   Paula Smith from Lyttelton-Mt Herbert Community Board.  I 

would just like an opportunity to speak to our submission for about 

10 minutes, thank you. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Yes, thank you very much, Ms Smith.  So is there any 

other submitter who hasn’t yet managed to say something that wishes 

to say something at this stage?  All right, well, having heard from that 

range of interests and there is quite a lot of evidence at large at the 20 

moment and I reiterate the point, I don’t want to repeat myself 

endlessly, but about the importance of avoiding repetition and the 

importance of understanding that we can rely on evidence we have 

already heard nevertheless there does seem to be quite a bit there.  

Ms Viskovic, do you think the - - - 25 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   I think that four days, based on the number of witnesses that 

parties have indicated they intend to call, may be a little light.  I think 

that this hearing initially when the Council was having discussions with 

the Secretariat it was perhaps set down for approximately seven days so 30 

that may be a more appropriate timeframe. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  It may depend to some extent on what we finally 

determine on these applications that we are awaiting, clearly in the case 

of the Crown that would seem to be the case, probably a day of time 35 

possibly saved there. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Certainly, sir. 

 

SJH:   Which highlights the inconvenience of these late filings. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   But perhaps it is safer to assume something in the order of 

six or seven days rather than four. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, sir.   45 

 



 Page 31 

  

PHC:  CH8 Subdivision, Development and Earthworks (Part) ex NNZ 06.08.15 

JUDGE HASSAN: What gets really complicated for us is if we have 

underestimated our time and then we find we have got problems with 

other scheduled hearings and when we fit things in then it becomes a 

real headache for us.  So I think it is worth some careful reflection and 

when you submit the updated issues list if you could confirm the 5 

Council’s position on that estimate, Ms Viskovic. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, well, thank you for that.  There is a range of 10 

other matters I just wanted to cover off.  The first is just to go back to 

the evidence exchange timetable which I have covered.  No one has 

raised any issues with that so I take it that we can work forward on that 

basis.  Just briefly again, the Council’s evidence can come in at the 

same time - well, its red lined updated chapter can come in at the same 15 

time as its evidence-in-chief.  Now, prior to that though, Ms Viskovic, I 

think you were going to provide an initial update which simply got rid 

of the New Neighbourhood provisions and circulated that for people to 

understand. 

 20 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  I think that could be done quite quickly.  Just related to 

that, obviously the parties are awaiting the Panel’s decision on the 

remaining matters in subdivision at stage 1, and I can indicate that we 25 

would hope to get a decision out on that relatively soon and ideally 

before the pre-hearing conference that has been scheduled on New 

Neighbourhood if we can.  Bearing in mind that timetable a suggestion 

was made this morning I will make again now is the Council in a 

position to provide an update of its provisions based on considering the 30 

decision’s version in stage 1 and ensuring proper alignment where it 

should be properly aligned between stage 2 and stage 1? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Do you mean by 5 October or prior to that? 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   By a suitable date.  I guess the question is how many days 

after the issuance of our decision, which you don’t know the date on, 

you would possibly need? This morning Mr Winchester indicated, after 

talking to Mr Stevenson on that topic that probably five working days 

might be enough.  Are you in a position to know, could you provide us 40 

with an indication of that in your - - - 

 

MS VISKOVIC:  Could I provide that in the memorandum, I am just conscious 

that given the movement in the chapter in stage 1 there may be more 

changes that are required to align the stage 2 chapter with the stage 1 45 

decision potentially? 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, bear in mind I guess the fact that there was extensive 

expert witness conferencing and a conferencing proposal issued as a 

result of that. 

 5 

  [3.30 pm] 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, so evidence from Chief of the Council on 10 

5 October submitted her evidence on Wednesday 14 October, rebuttal 

evidence including the submitted rebuttal of submitter evidence, that is 

all parties on Wednesday 21 October.   

 

 Coming to the issue of cross-examination and particularly for those 15 

parties down the back of the room that haven’t been to these hearing 

before and aren’t familiar with them, there is no right to cross-

examination as part of this process and what is necessary is if you wish 

to cross-examine a witness for another party then you will have to 

make an application.   20 

 

 You have to make a request to us and you will have to set out your 

request and also estimate the amount of time that you need for cross-

examination and typically at that time unless an exception is provided, 

the default time is 10 minutes per witness so 10 minutes of cross-25 

examination.  If you need more, you need to ask for more.  If you think 

it would take less, then we would appreciate it if you would say so, so 

we can properly estimate time. 

 

 Those requests for cross-examination will need to come by Tuesday 30 

22 October.  This process assumes that we will read evidence as pre-

circulated.  If the evidence is provided in by 3.00pm on the due date 

then you have satisfied your requirements for serving that evidence, it 

is deemed to be served in all parties if you get it in so that it is on the 

website by 3.00pm on the due date.  The onus though sits with the 35 

person who seeks to call evidence, to circulate that evidence, and to 

provide it to other parties and provide it to us, so if you don’t get it in 

on the website you will have to do that by that due time of 3.00pm on 

the due date. 

 40 

 If you need to put something in and it is late, in other words you 

haven’t complied with the timetabling direction, you will have to ask 

for leave to do that and you will have to give reasons. It is a typical 

process, that is what will apply here.   

 45 
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 When it comes to delivery of evidence, we would want a highlights 

package from the witness giving evidence and we emphasise that is not 

just reading out the executive summary, it is truly a highlights’ package 

where the expert thinks about what are the true issues for our attention 

and highlights those.  A generous timeframe of 10 minutes is provided 5 

for that; obviously if it could be done in less time we would appreciate 

it but the evidence will be pre-read so you can assume we have read 

everything and we understand the theory of that written evidence. 

 

 I have mentioned the fact that we don’t want repetition of evidence we 10 

have already heard – please cross-reference whether through an expert 

who is giving additional evidence or supplementary to that material, 

whether it be from that witness or another witness they agree with we 

would still appreciate cross-reference, we do not want repetition and 

we do not want witnesses to repeat endlessly what they say in their 15 

evidence. 

 

 If I could make a point about statutory documents, we are well familiar 

with them by now; we have read them thoroughly and made decisions 

on some of them so if you could bear that in mind, it’s not necessary to 20 

roll them all out through a witness and endlessly repeat them, just focus 

on what we need to pay attention to and do it with efficiency through 

your planning expert, please. 

 

 Legal submissions are intended to be brief in opening on the basis that 25 

we will provide a fulsome opportunity for closing submissions.  The 

order will be for the Council to present its case first, the follow up by 

the Crown, followed by other submitters.  The timetable for that will be 

provided to you.  Note that the timetable in which you are indicated to 

attend is emphasised on that timetable that it is indicative and parties 30 

should ensure that they are here well ahead of the time they are 

scheduled to appear in case things run ahead of the timetable. 

 

 So opening legal submissions, say, provided on the papers, if there is a 

need to speak to issues in opening submissions you need to tell the 35 

secretariat about that three days before you are due to present so that 

can be scheduled into the timetable.   

 

 All right, so we will revisit the number of estimated hearing times so 

we can properly set that once we have heard again from Ms Viskovic. 40 

 

 Now, the other matter relates to the memoranda making application for 

the various things that Mr Carranceja and Ms Walsh you have just 

spoken to, we have in mind just talking to the chair, now, that we 

should allow a 48 hour limit on those coming in, in other words from 45 

now.   
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SJH:   So close of business Monday? 

 

  [3.35 pm] 

 5 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Is that satisfactory to both you, bearing in mind we want a 

planning statement in conjunction with the – particularly the one in 

cultural and heritage, bearing in mind the issues we’re concerned about 

there? 

 10 

MR CARRANCEJA: Are we talking about the joint application with the 

Council’s? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Yes. All applications I was thinking about there Mr 

Carranceja including the joint one. 15 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well we don’t want to dillydally, we really can’t afford to. 

 20 

MR CARRANCEJA:   I appreciate that, I just recall Mr Winchester earlier this 

morning was saying that he was still to meet with his team about those 

provisions, I think – was it to - - -  

 

SJH:   He said he was meeting with the client this afternoon - - -  25 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   - - - Mr Carranceja, so you got all of tomorrow and all of Monday - - -  

 30 

MR CARRANCEJA:   I just wanted to check. 

 

SJH:   - - - and we’re in this position because this wasn’t approached with 

sufficient seriousness or speed initially. 

 35 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir. 

 

SJH:   So close of business, 5pm Monday. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right. Okay, does anyone else have any matters they 

want to raise before we close this session? All right. 

 

 45 

 Ms (INDISTINCT 1.12) you were going to say something? 
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MS……….:   No, sir, sorry. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, no that’s fine, thank you very much. 

 5 

ADJOURNED [4.36 pm] 


